SPECIAL NOTE

Owing to staffing and other difficulties in the printing, binding, and allied trades, and from other causes, there has been considerable delay in the issue of the Proceedings. Consequently it was considered advisable to issue Vols. LXXX and LXXXI concurrently, so that reports, etc. might be brought more up to date.

Costs of production have also risen very greatly, which constitute a heavy burden on the Society’s resources. In order to obviate the alternative, that of raising the annual subscription, it has therefore been decided

(1) to bind these two volumes in one cloth cover;
(2) to reduce future binding costs by issuing subsequent volumes in paper covers, as was done in relation to the first twelve volumes of the Proceedings (1851–78).

The attention of Fellows is also called to the following features:

(1) Alterations in Laws 1, 9, and 15 of the Society, and additional matter regarding Use of Library, Rules for Contributors, and Forms of Bequest.
(2) Limitation to two lines, where possible, of names, designations, and addresses of Fellows. (This for reasons of economy.)
(3) On last page of volume is a List of Books available for purchase at the Society’s rooms.
# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Anniversary Meeting, 1945,........................................ 1
Annual Report for 1944-1945, ...................................... 2
A Bronze Worker's Anvil and other Tools recently acquired by the Inverness Museum, with a Note on another Scottish Anvil. By Professor V. Gordon Childe, ........................................ 8
The Abbot's Cross. By William Fenton, F.S.A.Scot., ........................................ 34
Excavations at Chester Hill Fort, Hundlehope, in Manor Parish, 1939. By Miss P. A. M. Keef, F.S.A.Scot., ........................................ 61
The Inauguration of Alexander III. By Miss M. D. Legge, ........................................ 66
Notes:—
1. An Example of Scottish Medieval Pottery found in Paisley, 19th December 1938. By W. P. Mayes, F.S.A.Scot., Curator of Paisley Museum, ........................................ 140
2. A Small Hoard of Polished Stone Knives and a Polished Stone Adze from the Ward of Shurton, near Lerwick. By Peter Moar, Corresponding Member, ........................................ 140
TABLE OF CONTENTS

8. Flint Core Axe found on Fair Isle, Shetland. By GEORGE A. CUMMING, 146
Donations to and Purchases for the Museum, 1945–1946, 151
Donations to and Purchases for the Library, 1945–1946, 157
Anniversary Meeting, 1946, 159
Annual Report for 1945–1946, 160
Meetings of the Society, 164
Index, 165
LIST OF ILLUSTRATIONS

Bronzes from Inshoch Wood, Inverness-shire. PI. I, 1, 2, . . . . 8
Cast of mould from Low Glengyre, Wigtown. PI. I, 2.

"Wag" at Forse, Caithness: View across. PI. II, 1, . . . . 12
 —— Interior of dwelling, showing hearth. PI. III, 1.
 —— Interior of granary. PI. III, 2.
 —— Doorway into north "wag." PI. IV, 1.
 —— Interior of doorway. PI. IV, 2.
 —— Doorway, with position of stair. PI. V.
 —— Blocked opening. Pl. VI, 1.
 —— Foundation of turf wall. Pl. VI, 2.
 —— Paved area. Pl. VIII, 1.
 —— Two kinds of wailing. Pl. VIII, 2.
 —— Cooking-pot found on hearth. Pl. IX, 1.
 —— Section of wall. PI. IX, 2.
 —— Plan of "wag." . . . . 13

Grave slab at Ballone, Easter Ross. PI. X, 1.
Stone hatchet from Balvraid, arrow-heads from Golspie Links, and brooch and arrow-heads from Cuthill Links, Dornoch, Tumulus at Cadbollmount, Easter Ross. Pl. X, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5.
 —— Plan and Section. . . . . 32

Northumbrian "Peles": Gatehouse, North Pele. PI. XI, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5.
 —— Branshaw Pele. PI. XI, 4.
 —— Shittleugh Pele, Pl. XI, 6.
 —— Woodhouse Pele, Pl. XII, 1.
 —— Raw Pele, PI. XII, 2.
 —— West Woodburn Pele. Pl. XII, 3, 4, 5.
 —— Cottage fireplace at Spittal, Roxburghshire. PI. XII, 4.

Northumbrian "Peles": Black Middens Pele, Shipley Shiel. PI. XII, 6.

Tomb-slab of Gilbert Granland, Esq., Kinkell, Aberdeenshire, and (reverse) John Forbes of Ardmurdo. . . . . . . 47

Sculptured slab at Shrine of St Nicholas, Cross Kirk, Peebles. Pl. XIII, facing page 50

Cross Kirk, Peebles: Plan, as originally built, . . . . 63
 —— Elevation and Plan (including feretory), . . . . 65

Chester Hill Fort, Hundlehope, near Peebles: Plan, . . . . facing page 67
 —— Enlarged plan of gate area, . . . . 67
 —— Gate area. Pl. XIV, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5.
 —— Post-holes. Pl. XIV, 3, 4.
 —— Sections of ramparts, facing page 69

Duns, etc., in Colonsay and Gronsay: Uaigh an Fhomhair. Pl. XV, 1, 2, 3, 4.
 —— Map of Dun sites, . . . . 84
 —— Dun Urugaig. Pl. XV, 2, 4.
 —— Dun Eibhinn, . . . . 88
 —— Dun Ghallain. Pl. XVI, 1, 2.
 —— Dun Cholla. Pls. XVI, 2, 3, 4.
 —— Dun Chroispig, . . . . 91

Duns, etc., in Islay: Gallery grave near Port Charlotte, Islay. . . . . 99
 —— Stones near Dun Chroispig, . . . . 100
 —— Cairn below Cnoc a' Chuirn, . . . . 100
 —— Dun Chroispig, . . . . 101

Roman Mountain-Road, Dumfriesshire and Roxburghshire:
 —— Map 1. Site of Raeburnfoot, . . . . 104
 —— Road at Mid Raeburn, . . . . 107
 —— Road on Humphrey Law and Lambair Knowe, . . . . 109
 —— Road at Craik Cross and Laird's Knowe, . . . . 112
 —— Section at Craik Moor, . . . . 111

Tolquhon Monument in Tarves Kirkyard. Pl. XX, 1, . . . . facing page 120
<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>Illustration</th>
<th>Page</th>
</tr>
</thead>
<tbody>
<tr>
<td>Tomb of Bishop Gairn Dunbar, in St Machar's Cathedral. Pl. XXI,</td>
<td>facing page 121</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>Portrait medallion of Prince Charles Edward, and Seton enamelled finger-ring. Pl. XXI, facing page</td>
<td>127</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>Tolquhon Castle, Aberdeenshire: Corrected plan, . . . . . . . . . 124</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>Dalrulzion hut-circles: Plan and sections, 132, 133</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>Polmonthill shell-heap: Plan, . . . . 135</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>——— ——— Section and pit, . . . . 136</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>——— ——— Hearths, etc. Pl. XXII, facing page 136</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>Jug of Scottish medieval pottery. Pl. XXIII, 1, facing page 140</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>Polished stone knives from Shetland. Pl. XXIII, 2.</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>Polished stone adze from Shetland. Pl. XXIII, 3.</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>Neolithic and Grooved Ware, . . . . 142</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>Samples of early pottery. Pl. XXIV, facing page 142</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>Old cooling-trough in Fife, . . . . 145</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>Encrusted urn from Scotlandwell: With urn in situ, and paving beneath. Pl. XXV, facing page 146</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>Flint core axe from Fair Isle, . . . . 147</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>Fragment of bowl from Sundayswells Hill, Aberdeenshire. Pl. XXVI, facing page 149</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>Cist on Sundayswells Hill. Pl. XXVII, 1, facing page 150</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>Palette from head of Glen Muick. Pl. XXVII, 2.</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>Penannular bronze ring, from Luffness, . . . . 152</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>Hall-marks on pewter plate, . . . . 154</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
</tbody>
</table>
1. The purpose of this Society shall be the study of the Antiquities and History of Scotland, more especially by means of Archaeological Research.

2. The Society shall consist of Fellows, Honorary Fellows, Corresponding Members, and Lady Associates.

3. Candidates for admission as Fellows must sign the Form of Application prescribed by the Council, and must be proposed by a Fellow and seconded by two members of the Council. Admission shall be by ballot.

4. The Secretaries shall cause the names of the Candidates and of their Proposers to be inserted in the billet calling the Meeting at which they are to be balloted for. The Ballot may be taken for all the Candidates named in the billet at once; but if three or more black balls appear, the Chairman of the Meeting shall cause the Candidates to be balloted for singly. Any Candidate receiving less than two-thirds of the votes given shall not be admitted.

5. Honorary Fellows shall consist of persons eminent in Archaeology, who must be recommended by the Council, and balloted for in the same way as Fellows; they shall not be liable for any fees of admission or annual subscriptions. The number of Honorary Fellows shall not exceed twenty-five.

6. Corresponding Members must be recommended by the Council and balloted for in the same way as Fellows, and they shall not be liable for any fees of admission or annual subscriptions.

7. Ladies who have done valuable work in the field of Archaeology may be admitted as Lady Associates. The number of Lady Associates shall not exceed twenty-five. They shall be proposed by the Council and balloted for in the same way as Fellows, and shall not be liable for any fees of admission or annual subscriptions.
8. Before the name of any person is added to the List of Fellows, such person shall pay to the funds of the Society Two Guineas as an entrance fee and One Guinea for the current year’s subscription, or may compound for the entrance fee and all annual subscriptions by the payment of Twenty Guineas at the time of admission. Fellows may compound for future annual subscriptions by a single payment of Fifteen Guineas after having paid five annual subscriptions; or of Ten Guineas after having paid ten annual subscriptions.

9. The subscription of One Guinea shall become due on the 30th September in each year for the year then commencing; and if any Fellow who has not compounded shall fail to pay the subscription for three successive years, due application having been made for payment, the Treasurer shall report the same to the Council, by whose authority the name of the defaulter may be erased from the List of Fellows. Fellows whose membership has lapsed, and who wish to rejoin the Society, may do so either (1) by payment of all arrears of subscription—in which case they shall receive the relative volumes of Proceedings if available—or (2) on payment of the subscription for the current year and an entrance fee of two guineas.

10. Every Fellow not being in arrears of the annual subscription shall be entitled to receive the printed Proceedings of the Society from the date of election.

11. None but Fellows shall vote or hold any office in the Society.

12. Subject to the Laws and to the control of the Society in General Meetings, the affairs of the Society shall be managed by a Council elected and appointed as hereinafter set forth. Five Members of the Council shall be a quorum.

13. The Office-Bearers of the Society shall consist of a President, three Vice-Presidents, two Secretaries for general purposes, two Secretaries for Foreign Correspondence, a Treasurer, two Curators of the Museum, a Curator of Coins, and a Librarian. The President shall be elected for a period of five years, and the Vice-Presidents for a period of three years. One of the Vice-Presidents shall retire annually by rotation and shall not again be eligible for the same office until after the lapse of one year. All the other Office-bearers shall be elected for one year and shall be eligible for re-election.

14. In accordance with the agreement subsisting between the Society and the Government, the Board of Manufactures (now the Board of Trustees) shall be represented on the Council by two of its Members (being Fellows of the Society) elected annually by the Society. The Treasury shall be represented on the Council by the King’s and Lord Treasurer’s Remembrancer (being a Fellow of the Society).
15. The Council shall consist of the Office-Bearers, the three representative Members above specified, the Keeper of the Museum, ex officio, and nine Fellows elected by the Society.

16. Three of the nine elected Members of Council shall retire annually by rotation, and shall not again be eligible till after the lapse of one year. Vacancies among the elected Members of Council and Office-Bearers occurring by completion of term of office, by retirement on rotation, by resignation, by death or otherwise, shall be filled by election at the Annual General Meeting. The election shall be by Ballot, upon a list issued by the Council for that purpose to the Fellows at least fourteen days before the Meeting.

17. The Council may appoint committees or individuals to take charge of particular departments of the Society's business.

18. The Annual General Meeting of the Society shall take place on St Andrew's Day, the 30th of November, or on the following day if the 30th be a Sunday.

19. The Council shall have power to call Extraordinary General Meetings when they see cause.

20. The Ordinary Meetings of the Society shall be held on the second Monday of each month, from December to May inclusive.

21. Unless special arrangements to the contrary have been made, copyright of the Proceedings and of all papers printed therein, as well as of all illustrations, shall belong to the Society. This provision shall not apply to illustrations made from blocks borrowed from outside sources.

22. Every proposal for altering the Laws must be made through the Council; and the Secretaries, on instructions from the Council, shall cause intimation thereof to be made to all the Fellows at least one month before the General Meeting at which it is to be determined on.

LIBRARY REGULATIONS.

1. The Library is open to the public for reference, but the privilege of borrowing books is extended only to Fellows of the Society.

2. No Fellow may have more than five borrowed books in his possession at any one time. Books may not be retained longer than two months, and may be recalled to the Library after a fortnight if required by another reader. If Fellows desire to retain a book for a further period of two months, a written application must be made.
3. The following categories may not be borrowed except on the authority of the Council: MSS. and typescripts; scarce volumes, pamphlets and all works published before 1800; standard works of reference, bibliographies, catalogues and maps; certain standard authoritative works unless duplicate copies are stocked; volumes liable to damage in transit owing to their size, weight or condition. Books, including periodicals, will not normally be lent out within two months of acquisition. Newly acquired works, and some works of reference and standard authorities may, however, be borrowed for one night or from Saturday to Monday morning at the Keeper's discretion.

4. Fellows may borrow by post only within the United Kingdom and upon repayment of postage. Books must not be sent with open ends, and registration will be required.

5. Loss or damage shall be made good by the borrower, who may be required by the Council to furnish another copy of the entire work.

Infringement of the foregoing rules will render the borrower liable to a suspension of borrowing privileges.

RULES FOR CONTRIBUTORS TO THE PROCEEDINGS.

1. Each contribution will be considered by the Editorial Committee and a decision intimated to the sender without undue delay.

2. If the contributor wishes the paper to be read before the Society a date will be arranged, and (if lantern slides are required to be made) the requisite photos and drawings should be handed to the Editor at least one month before the date of the meeting.

3. All slides prepared at the Society's expense become the property of the Society and are filed for general use. This does not apply to slides prepared or furnished by the contributor, though gifts of these are welcomed.

4. The time limit assigned to each paper will be intimated to the contributor, and it is desirable that the reading of the paper (or synopsis thereof) should not exceed that period. If a special précis of the paper is desired for insertion in the Press, that should be handed to the Secretary on the day of the meeting.

5. If the paper is to appear in the Proceedings it must be typed or clearly written, and submitted to the Editor in as advanced a state as possible for sending to the printers. Untidy papers that are difficult to decipher or need a lot of adjustment and re-editing may be delayed in publication.
LAWS OF THE SOCIETY.

6. To avoid adding to the already high printing costs no considerable alterations or additions will normally be allowed after the type has been set up, unless the author undertakes to defray the cost of such alterations. No major changes can be effected after the article is in page form.

7. Contributors are entitled to receive 30 copies gratis of their paper. Any additional copies required may be had, at their own expense, on application to Messrs Neill & Co., Printers, Causewayside, Edinburgh. Such application must be made before the volume in which the paper appears is issued to Fellows of the Society.

Forms of Bequest.

[With the object (1) of presenting collections of antiquities, books, etc., or aiding the funds of the Society for the purchase of such articles; or (2) to provide funds for excavation ¹; or (3) to contribute to the Special Purchase Fund created in March 1948 for enabling the Society to procure for the National Museum of Antiquities objects of special historical and antiquarian interest relating to Scotland which might otherwise be bought up and dispersed at prices beyond the reach of the Society's ordinary income.]

(1) I, A. B., do hereby leave and bequeath to the Society of Antiquaries of Scotland incorporated by Royal Charter, my collection of and I direct that the same shall be delivered to the said Society on the receipt of the Secretary or Treasurer thereof.

(2) I, A. B., do hereby leave and bequeath to the Society of Antiquaries of Scotland incorporated by Royal Charter, the sum of £ sterling [for the General Fund, Excavation Fund, Special Purchase Fund, etc.], and I direct that the said sum may be paid to the said Society on the receipt of the Treasurer for the time being.

¹ Particular fields of excavation can be defined, if so desired, e.g. Roman sites, mediæval period, cairns, brochs, etc.

President—The Right Hon. The Earl of Haddington, M.C., T.D.

Vice-Presidents—Professor J. Duncan Mackie, C.B.E., M.C., M.A.
Alexander O. Curle, C.V.O., LL.D., F.S.A.
Sir David Russell, LL.D.

Secretaries—Douglas P. Maclagan, W.S.
Angus Graham, M.A., F.S.A.
Professor W. M. Calder, M.A., LL.D., F.B.A. (for Foreign
W. Douglas Simpson, M.A., D.Litt., F.S.A. \{Correspondence\).

Assistant Secretary and Editor—Henry M. Paton.

Treasurer—James J. Lamb, M.A., LL.B. (42 Melville Street, Edinburgh).

Curators of Museum—James S. Richardson, LL.D.
Ian A. Richmond, M.A., LL.D., F.B.A., V.-P.S.A.

Curator of Coins—Robert Kerr, M.A.

Librarian—H. J. H. Drummond, M.A.

Correspondence (including papers for the Proceedings) should be addressed
to the Assistant Secretary, Society of Antiquaries of Scotland, Queen
Street, Edinburgh.

Subscriptions should be sent to the Treasurer, Society of Antiquaries of
Scotland, 42 Melville Street, Edinburgh.
<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>Year</th>
<th>Name</th>
<th>Address</th>
</tr>
</thead>
<tbody>
<tr>
<td>1932</td>
<td><em>Adam, David Rankine</em></td>
<td>76 Stewarton Drive, Cambuslang</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1944</td>
<td>Adam, William, C.A.</td>
<td>3 Dumbreck Road, Glasgow, S. 1</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1938</td>
<td>Anew, Colonel C. H.</td>
<td>Bonjedward House, Jedburgh</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1931</td>
<td>Anew, Rev. Hugh M.</td>
<td>Balfour House, St. George’s Street, Capetown, South Africa</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1938</td>
<td><em>Ailsa</em></td>
<td>The Dowager Marchioness of, Culzean Castle, Maybole</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1942</td>
<td><em>Aitken</em></td>
<td>Stephen Charles de Laney, Coupland Castle, Wooler, Northumberland</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1942</td>
<td><em>Aitchison</em></td>
<td>Sir Walter de Laney, Bart., M.A., Coupland Castle, Wooler, Northumberland</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1942</td>
<td><em>Aitken</em></td>
<td>2 N.E. Circus Place, Edinburgh, 3</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1929</td>
<td><em>Anderson</em></td>
<td>8 Park Terrace, Glasgow, C. 3</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1940</td>
<td><em>Anderson</em></td>
<td>Record Office, H.M. Register House, Edinburgh</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1944</td>
<td><em>Anderson</em></td>
<td>James, 17 Jnafield Place, Dundee</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1944</td>
<td><em>Anderson</em></td>
<td>James Mavor, 64 High Street, Forres, Morayshire</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1947</td>
<td><em>Anderson</em></td>
<td>Rev. John, B.D., Cairnston, Orphir, Orkney</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1947</td>
<td><em>Anderson</em></td>
<td>William Scott, F.I.F.M., 49 Northfield Avenue, Edinburgh, 8</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1941</td>
<td><em>Anderson</em></td>
<td>William White, M.C., M.A., D.D., 12 Garscube Terrace, Edinburgh, 12</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1926</td>
<td>Angue, William, LL.D.</td>
<td>Keeper of the Registers and Records of Scotland, H.M. General Register House, Edinburgh, 2, Vice-President</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1910</td>
<td><em>Argyll</em></td>
<td>His Grace the Duke of, Inveraray Castle</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1918</td>
<td><em>Argyll</em></td>
<td>His Grace the Duke of, Inveraray Castle</td>
</tr>
</tbody>
</table>

An asterisk (*) denotes Life Membership.

Note.—Volumes LXXX and LXXXI being bound together as one, the List covers a two-year period, 1945-46 and 1946-47, and there is a supplementary List for the period to June 30, 1948 (see p. xxx). Where members have died or resigned during that period, the fact is noted.

For reasons of economy, names-and-designations of Fellows are confined to two lines each, where practicable.
1941. Armour, William Nicol McSermiting, C.A., 7 Kelvinside Terrace West, Glasgow, N.W.

1946. Banks, George Donald, Carsaig, Park Road, Bishopbriggs, Glasgow.
1946. Bannan, Anthony Charles, 26 Lindores Drive, Tranent, E. Lothian.
1928.*Bannew, Captain Ronald R. Bruce, M.C., c/o British Embassy, Washington, D.C., U.S.A.
1931. Barclay, Rev. William, M.A., 47 Monreith Road, Newlands, Glasgow, S. 3.
1947. Batterson, William, 10 Canmore Street, Dunfermline.
1909. Bishop, Andrew Henderson, Domaine de la Forêt, Villar-sur-Ollon, Switzerland.
1926. Blanc, George, 48 Victoria Crescent Road, Glasgow, W. 2 (res.).
1944. Boddie, Professor George F., B.Sc., M.R.C.V.S., 21 Cadogan Road, Edinburgh, 9.
1917. Bona, John James, Edinbrae, Lasswade.
1942.*Bowser, Major D. Charles, O.B.E., J.P., c/o Argatty and The King’s Lundy, Doune.
1906.*Brown, Adam, Netherby, Galashiels.
1921.*Brown, Donald, 15 Archdeacon Crescent, Cockerton, Darlington (dec.).
1933. Brown, Sheriff George, Berstane House, St Ola, Orkney (dec.).
1932. Brownlee, David Angus, Brownlee Cottage, Colston, Bishopbriggs.
1922.*Brunwin, George Eustace, Haverings, Rayne, Braintree, Essex.
1902. BRYCE, Professor THOMAS H., M.D., LL.D., The Bridge House, Downington, Lechlade, Glos. (dec.).

1935. BRYDON, R. S., M.A.(Hons.), Ph.D., Breadalbane Academy, Aberfeldy, Perthshire.

1946. BUCHANAN-DUNLOP, Lt.-Col. A. H., of Drumhead, O.B.E., Lasswade, Midlothian (dec.).


1943. BULLOCH, Rev. JAMES B. P., B.D., The Manse, Tranent, East Lothian.

1911. BUKNETT, Rev. WILLIAM, B.D., 14 Thorn Lane, Roundhay, Leeds, 8 (dec.).


1933. BURNS, THOMAS PILKINGTON, Dornoch Castle, Dornoch, Sutherland.

1925. BURNESIDE, Rev. JOHN W., M.A., Plainlees, 19 Carriagehill Drive, Paisley.

1928. BUHRELL, Sir WILLIAM, Hutton Castle, Berwick-upon-Tweed.


1936. CABLE, JAMES EWEN, M.B., Ch.B., D.P.H., 53 East High Street, Forfar.


1930. CALLANDEE, ALEXANDER D., Lellopitiya, Ratnapura, Ceylon.

1939. CALLANDEH, WILLIAM A., Writer, 100 West George Street, Glasgow, S. 3.


1940. CAMERON, Capt. IAIN C. GORDON, F.R.N.S., Doane College, Crete, Nebraska, U.S.A.

1947. CAMERON, JOHN, Station House, Forres.

1938. CAMERON, JOHN HOPE, W.S., 31 Moray Place, Edinburgh, 3.

1934. CAMERON, Capt. JOHN MCCORMACK, J.P., Tollcross Park Mans, 94 Drumower Drive, Glasgow.

1931. CANT, Rev. ALAN, D.D., B.Sc., 2 Kinburn Place, St Andrews, Fife.

1901. CARRFAE, GEORGE, 77 George Street, Edinburgh, 2.

1939. CARMICHAEL, DAN, 238 Arbroath Road, Dundee.

1923. CARNEGIE-ARTHUR, Lt.-Col., Balnamoor, Brechin.

1922. CARRUTHERS, ARTHUR STANLEY, A.C.A., 9 Beechwood Road, Sandteread, Surrey.

1938. CARSON, JAMES, M.B.E., F.E.I.S., Kelimore, 41 Church Street, Brechin, Angus.

1932. CARTER, HANLEY S., M.D., D.P.H., Public Health Laboratory, 20 Cochrane Street, Glasgow.

1896. CAV, Sir JAMES L., LL.D., Edinkerry, Lasswade, Midlothian.

1929. CHALMERS, Francis, W.S., 20 Corrennie Gardens, Edinburgh, 10 (dec.).

1919. CHALMERS, Rev. HENRY REID, 50 Grove Road, West Ferry, Dundee, Angus.


1940. CHALMERS, WALTER, 5 Camerton Crescent, Edinburgh, 9.


1946. CHISHOLM, Rev. JAMES, 11 Eton Terrace, Edinburgh.

1932. CHRISTIE, Bailie DOUGLAS MORRISON, J.P., 204 Ferry Road, Dundee.

1901. CHRISTIE, Miss ELLA R., Cowden Castle, Dollar.

1938. CLARK, JAMES ALASDAIR, Loch Leven Hotel, North Ballachulish, Onich, Inverness-shire.


1939. CLARK, WILLIAM C., 75 Cairnfield Place, Aberdeen.

1921. CLARK, WILLIAM FORDYCE, Hillgarth, Balta Sound, Shetland Isles (dec.).

1941. CLAUSEN, ERLING J. F., F.R.G.S., 5 Sycamore Place, Aberdeen.

1908. CLAY, ALEXANDER THOMSON, W.S., 18 South Learmonth Gardens, Edinburgh, 4.
1938. CLENDENIN, Major Paul Dana, 60 Northumberland Road, North Harrow, Middlesex.

1929.*CLIFFORD, Mrs Elsie Margaret, Chandlers, Witcombe, Glos.

1916. CLOUSTON, Enos C. T., M.R.C.S.(Eng.), L.R.C.P. (Lond.), The Chalet, Yaxley, near Eye, Suffolk.


1922.*CLOUSTON, Ronald G., L.R.C.P., L.R.C.S.(Edin.), 10 Carrington Street, Glasgow, C. 4.


1932. CONNELL, William, 43 Chestwood Avenue, Oakland Park, Barnstaple.


1925.*COUSINS, A. Robertson, M.C., B.A., LL.B., Old Ballinairin, Ballron, Stirlingshire.


1938. COOK, John Manuel, B.A., 114 Braid Road, Edinburgh, 10.


1946. CRAIG, Robert Colart, "Gowanbrae," Langholm, Dumfriesshire.


1946.*CRAWFORD and BALCARES, The Right Hon. The Earl of, Balcarras, Collingsburgh, Fife.

1943.*CRAWFORD, James Russell, Stonehurst, Linden Road, Halifax.

1931. CRICKET, George, 6 Duncan Street, Edinburgh, 9.


1935. CROSBY, JAMES, of Claverhouse, F.R.S.A., Claverhouse, by Dundee.


1931. DALGETTY, Ethel Jane, M.D., 14 Strips of Craigie, Dundee.


1920. DAVIDSON, Major A. R., The Black Watch, Invernahaven, Abernethy, Perthshire (dec.).

1925. DAVIDSON, George M., Architect and Surveyor, 16 King Street, Stirling.
<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>Year</th>
<th>Name</th>
<th>Title/Position</th>
<th>Address</th>
</tr>
</thead>
<tbody>
<tr>
<td>1920</td>
<td>Davidson, James</td>
<td>Treasurer, Carnegie Trust</td>
<td>Morningside Park, Edinburgh, 10.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1924</td>
<td>Davidson, Thomas D.</td>
<td>Advocate, 60 Hamilton Place</td>
<td>Aberdeen.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1934</td>
<td>Duncan, Colonel Alan M.</td>
<td>T.D., 408 Albert Drive</td>
<td>Glasgow.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1920</td>
<td>Davidson, James M.</td>
<td>O.B.E., F.C.I.S., F.S.A.</td>
<td>Griffin Lodge, Gartcosh, Glasgow.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1936</td>
<td>Davidson, William T.</td>
<td></td>
<td>36 Woodstock Road, Aberdeen.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1932</td>
<td>Davidson, A. Bashall</td>
<td>Architect and Civil Engineer, Lossiebank, Whytehouse Avenue, Kirkcaldy.</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1938</td>
<td>Dickinson, Provost</td>
<td>J.P., 3 Bank Street</td>
<td>Annan.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1922</td>
<td>Dixon, Ronald A. M.</td>
<td>of Theanne, F.R.C.P.E., Theanne Hall, near Beverley, Yorkshire.</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1935</td>
<td>Dunlop, Mrs Annie I.</td>
<td>Advocate, 6 Hamilton Place</td>
<td>5 Meethill Road, Alyth, Perthshire.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1930</td>
<td>Fairbairn, James</td>
<td>Eadie Church, Great Bookham, Surrey.</td>
<td>28 Dunrobin Road, Clarkston, by Airdrie.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1921</td>
<td>Fairbairn, James</td>
<td>Edinham House, Great Bookham, Edinburgh</td>
<td>28 Dunrobin Road, Clarkston, by Airdrie.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1940</td>
<td>Farmer, Henry George</td>
<td>M.A., Ph.D., D.Litt., Dar As-Salam, Stirling Drive, Bearsden.</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1923</td>
<td>Farmer, Henry George</td>
<td>M.A., Ph.D., D.Litt., Dar As-Salam, Stirling Drive, Bearsden.</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1930</td>
<td>Farmer, Henry George</td>
<td>M.A., Ph.D., D.Litt., Dar As-Salam, Stirling Drive, Bearsden.</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1924</td>
<td>Fergusson, Frederick</td>
<td>The Homestead, Avenue Road, Southgate, London, N. 14.</td>
<td>Castle Street, Brechin.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1928</td>
<td>Fergusson, Frederick</td>
<td>The Homestead, Avenue Road, Southgate, London, N. 14.</td>
<td>Castle Street, Brechin.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1930</td>
<td>Fergusson, Harry Scott</td>
<td>M.A., Ph.D., D.P.H. 109 Montgomery Street, Edinburgh (dec.)</td>
<td>Sandyhills, West Park Road, Dundee.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1939</td>
<td>Ferris, Mrs Ellen K.</td>
<td>The Manor, King's Norton, Warwickshire.</td>
<td>11 Lauder Road, Edinburgh.</td>
</tr>
</tbody>
</table>

B*
<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>Year</th>
<th>Name</th>
<th>Title</th>
<th>Address</th>
</tr>
</thead>
<tbody>
<tr>
<td>1899</td>
<td>Findlay, James Leslie</td>
<td>Architect</td>
<td>10 Eton Terrace, Edinburgh, 4</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1906</td>
<td>Finlayson, Alexander M.</td>
<td></td>
<td>31 Brown Place, Wick.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1947</td>
<td>Finlayson, James A.</td>
<td></td>
<td>29a Bridge Street, Hawick.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1921</td>
<td>Finlayson, Rev. William</td>
<td>Architect</td>
<td>The Rectory, Thelnetham, Diss, Norfolk.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1922</td>
<td>Fleming, John Arnold</td>
<td></td>
<td>Locksley, Helensburgh.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1943</td>
<td>Fletcher, James J.P.</td>
<td>Provost of Kirkintilloch</td>
<td>Netherfield, Kirkintilloch.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1938</td>
<td>Flett, Andrew B.</td>
<td></td>
<td>15 Walker Street, Edinburgh, 3</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1928</td>
<td>Flett, James A.I.A.</td>
<td></td>
<td>3 Langlands Place, Dumfries.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1939</td>
<td>Flett, James J.P.</td>
<td></td>
<td>Bignold Park Road, Kirkwall, Orkney.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1945</td>
<td>Foese, Donald J.</td>
<td></td>
<td>Craigmill House, Strathmartine by Dundee.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1935</td>
<td>Foese, John Fostee</td>
<td></td>
<td>Solway Cottage, Broughton, Bigger, Lanarkshire.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1945</td>
<td>Forrest, Archibald</td>
<td></td>
<td>1889 Pollokshaws Road, Glasgow, S. 1</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1935</td>
<td>Foster-Smith, Alfred</td>
<td></td>
<td>Northlands, Brighton Road, Crawley, Sussex.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1923</td>
<td>Franklin, Charles A.</td>
<td></td>
<td>Wickham Hill House, Hassocks, Sussex.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1934</td>
<td>Fraser, Alasdair, M.A.</td>
<td>of Raonnér, The Schoolhouse, Conon Bridge, Dingwall.</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1934</td>
<td>Fraser, Charles Ian</td>
<td></td>
<td>Reelig House, Kirkhill, Inverness-shire.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1921</td>
<td>Fraser, George Mackay</td>
<td>Solicitor and Banker</td>
<td>Summerlea House, Portree, Skye.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1930</td>
<td>Fraser, Sir John</td>
<td></td>
<td>K.C.V.O., LL.D., 20 Moray Place, Edinburgh, 3 (dec.).</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1945</td>
<td>Gair, John B.</td>
<td></td>
<td>Finwood, 34 Rose Street, Thurso, Caithness.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1929</td>
<td>Galbraith, J. J.</td>
<td></td>
<td>4 Park Street, Dingwall.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1943</td>
<td>Galbraith, Robert</td>
<td></td>
<td>77 Argyll Place, Aberdeen.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1920</td>
<td>Galloway, Thomas L.</td>
<td>Advocate</td>
<td>Auchendrane, by Ayt.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1918</td>
<td>Garden, William</td>
<td>Advocate</td>
<td>4 Rubishaw Terrace, Aberdeen.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1946</td>
<td>Gardner, Alan</td>
<td></td>
<td>83 Piton Drive, Edinburgh, 5.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1925</td>
<td>Gardner, George</td>
<td></td>
<td>The Kibble House, Greenock Road, Paisley.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1946</td>
<td>*Gardner, John C.</td>
<td></td>
<td>Avilion, Stonehaven.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1944</td>
<td>Gardner, William Reid</td>
<td></td>
<td>Milngavie, Dumbartonshire (dec.).</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1926</td>
<td>Gauld, H. Drummond</td>
<td></td>
<td>Blackcroft, Midlem, Selkirk.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1941</td>
<td>Gemmell, Samuel</td>
<td>Examiner</td>
<td>R.N.T.F., 8 Greynville Road, Gourrock, Renfrewshire.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1935</td>
<td>Gentles, John</td>
<td>Architect</td>
<td>5 Bowling Street, Coatbridge.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1930</td>
<td>Gibb, Sir Alexander G.B.E.</td>
<td></td>
<td>Queen Anne’s Lodge, Westminster (dec.).</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1923</td>
<td>Gibb, John Taylor</td>
<td></td>
<td>High Street, Mauchline, Ayshire (dec.).</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1947</td>
<td>Gilchrist, Robert</td>
<td></td>
<td>A.M.I.C.E., 8 Bedford Street, Greenock.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1945</td>
<td>Gillett, H. M.</td>
<td></td>
<td>St. Raphael’s College, Oxendon Hall, Market Harborough, Leicester.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1946</td>
<td>Gillett, Donald</td>
<td></td>
<td>10 Bellane Street, Glasgow, C. 3</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1924</td>
<td>Gillies, Rev. William A.</td>
<td></td>
<td>The Manse, Kenmore, Perthshire.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1924</td>
<td>Gillon, Stair Agnew</td>
<td></td>
<td>Abbey St Bathans, Duns, Berwickshire.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1926</td>
<td>Gilmore, John</td>
<td></td>
<td>8 Mosesfield Street, Springburn, Glasgow.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1922</td>
<td>Girvan, Ritchie</td>
<td>University Lecturer</td>
<td>Ekadasha, 11 Clevenden Gardens, Glasgow.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1912</td>
<td>Gladstone, Sir Hugh S.</td>
<td></td>
<td>F.R.E., Capenoch, Penport, Dunfiesshire.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1938</td>
<td>Gladstone, John</td>
<td></td>
<td>M.A., Capenoch, Penport (res.).</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1946</td>
<td>Glennie, Herbert Charles</td>
<td></td>
<td>Viewfield, Torphichen Street, Bathgate.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1933</td>
<td>Goldsmith, Miss Elizabeth</td>
<td></td>
<td>M.A. (Hons.), 14 West Holme Gardens, Musselburgh.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1938</td>
<td>Gomm-Duncan, Colonel Alan</td>
<td></td>
<td>M.C., M.P., Dunbarney, Bridge of Earn, Perthshire.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1937</td>
<td>Good, Robert James</td>
<td></td>
<td>J.P., Maybank, 32 Alnwickhill Road, Edinburgh, 9 (dec.).</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1913</td>
<td>Graham, Angus</td>
<td></td>
<td>M.A. (Secretary, Royal Corn. Anc. and Hist. Mon., Scotland), 1 Nelson Street, Edinburgh, 3.—Secretary.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1933</td>
<td>Graham, Francis B.</td>
<td></td>
<td>Solicitor, 61 Reform Street, Dundee (res.).</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1917</td>
<td>Graham, Capt. James Gerard</td>
<td></td>
<td>Quinta do Alvor, Rua Avedo Continho, Oporto, Portugal.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1941</td>
<td>Grant, Robert D. S.</td>
<td></td>
<td>M.A. (Edin.), Seaview, Muchalls, Aberdeen.</td>
</tr>
</tbody>
</table>
1930.*Grant, Walter G., of Trumland, Hillhead, Kirkwall, Orkney.

1944. Grant, Will, 1 St. Fillan’s Terrace, Edinburgh (dec.).

1931. Grant, William Äneas, Alpha Cottage, Union Street, Kirkintilloch.

1937. Gray, Alexander, M.A., LL.B., Dunvegan, Church Avenue, Cardross, Dunbartonshire.

1944. Gray, Alexander L., 131 High Street, Inverutie, Aberdeenshire (res.).

1937. Gray, Frank, Craig Lodge, Glenprosen, Angus.


1939. Gray, Robert D., 15 Lonsdale Terrace, Edinburgh (res.).


1943. Greeneblatt, R. I., L.R.C.P., L.R.C.S., Robroyston Hospital, Millerston, Glasgow.

1939.*Greenhill, Frank, M.A.(Oxon.), 2 Holly Road, Broughty Ferry, Dundee.


1922. Greivy, William Grant, 10 Queensferry Street, Edinburgh, 2 (dec.).

1920, Guild, James Harrower, W.S., 5 Coates Gardens, Dundee, 12.

1907.*Guthrie, Charles, W.S., 9 Great Stuart Street, Edinburgh, 3.


1938. Hamilton, Miss Dorothy E., 5 Ainslie Place, Edinburgh, 3.


1919. Hanna, Miss Chalmers, Dalnasgadh, Killiecrankie, Perthshire.


1933. Harriss, James, M.D., J.P., 31 Howard Street, North Shields, Northumberland (dec.).


1945.*Henderson, Daniel Clark, c/o Stenhouse, 10 Victoria Chambers, Victoria Road, Dundee.


1928.*Henderson, Miss Dorothy M., Kilchoan, Kilmelford, Argyll.


1934.*Henderson, Miss Mabel Daist, 33 Seymour Street, Dundee, Dundee, Angus.

1937. Henderson, Stuart M. K., Ph.D., B.Sc., Director of Museums, Kelvingrove Museum, Glasgow, C. 3.


1946.*Hewett, Mrs. D. V., Cartref, Redding, by Falkirk.


1926.*Hogarth, James, Hillwood House, Clermiston Road, Edinburgh, 12.


1926. HOOD, Mrs Violet M., Tredean, near Chepstow, Mon. (dec.).
1946. HOOPER, John E., Traquair Bank, Innerleithen.
1928. HOPE, Rev. Leslie P., M.A., Ph.D., 24 Glasgow Street, Glasgow, W. 2.
1925. Howard De Walden, The Right Hon. Lord, Dean Castle, Kilmarnock (dec.).
1927. Hunter, John, Auchenreoch, by Brechin, Angus (dec.).
1937. Hunter, William Charters, 56 Skirving Street, Shawlands, Glasgow.
1946. Innes, Rev. George P., B.D., LL.B., South Mane, Skelmorlie, Ayrshire.
1920. Johnston, Alfred Wintle, 30 Goblins Green, Welwyn Garden City, Herts. (dec.).
1942. Johnston, Alfred Wintles, 30 Goblins Green, Welwyn Garden City, Herts. (dec.).
1945. Johnston, James M.A., 7 Fleurs Avenue, Dumfreck, Glasgow, S. I.
1943. Johnston, Pastor M. C. S., 16 Stott Street, Alnwick, Northumberland.
1930. Jones, Mrs Enid Poole, Glyn, West Kilbride, Ayrshire.
1922. Keiller, Alexander, of Morven, Ballater, Aberdeenshire.
1907. Kent, Benjamin William John, Tatefield Hall, Beckwithshaw, Harrogate.
1927. Kerr, Robert M.A. (Keeper of the Art and Ethnographical Department, Royal Scottish Museum), 34 Wardie Road, Edinburgh, 5,—Curator of Coins.
1911. Kitchener, W. T., W.S., 1 Jeffrey Avenue, Blackhall, Edinburgh, 4 (dec.).
1945. Kilgour, Mrs Anne Grant, 5 Corstorphine Hill Avenue, Edinburgh, 12.
1912. King, Captain Charles, F.S.Sc. Lond., F.C.S. 11 Kelvin Drive, Glasgow, N.W.
1926. King, Mrs Eliza Margaret, of Armoy, Port of Menteith, Perthshire.
1926. Kinnear, William Fraser Anderson, Colebrooke, Keslind Drive, Mingsgavie.
1927. Kirkwood, James, Beltrees, Dunchurch Road, Oldhall, near Paisley.
1922. Knief, Miss F. Beatrice, Ballamoar House, Ballaugh, Isle of Man.
<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>Year</th>
<th>Name</th>
<th>Title/Position</th>
<th>Address</th>
</tr>
</thead>
<tbody>
<tr>
<td>1924</td>
<td>Knox, William Barr</td>
<td>Ryesfield, Dalry, Ayrshire (dec.)</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1910</td>
<td>Laidly, Percy Ward, M.O.H.</td>
<td>City Hall, East London, C.P., South Africa</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1922</td>
<td>Lam, Rev. George</td>
<td>c/o Royal Bank of Scotland, West End Branch, Greenock</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1923</td>
<td>Lam, James J., M.A., LL.B.</td>
<td>Solicitor, 42 Melville Street, Edinburgh</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1947</td>
<td>Lam, James J., M.A., LL.B.</td>
<td>Treasurer</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1925</td>
<td>Lamont, Sir Norman</td>
<td>M.P., of Knockdow, Toward, Argyllshire</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1932</td>
<td>Larg, Robert James</td>
<td>J.P., &quot;The Hollies,&quot; 63 Clepington Road, Dundee</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1943</td>
<td>Lawson, Lt.-Col. Harold</td>
<td>Road South, Edinburgh</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1930</td>
<td>Lawson, W. B.</td>
<td>1 Roseburn Gardens, Edinburgh</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1927</td>
<td>Leach, Dr. William John</td>
<td>Eileandonan, Beauly</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1937</td>
<td>Lee, William</td>
<td>&quot;Dhu Varran,&quot; 267 Clepington Road, Dundee</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1943</td>
<td>Leith-Ross, Lieut.-Colonel</td>
<td>St Colms, 7 Lennox Row, Edinburgh (dec.)</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1925</td>
<td>Leslie, Sheriff</td>
<td>John Dean, 16 Victoria Place, Stirling</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1944</td>
<td>McAdam, William</td>
<td>Advocate in Aberdeen, 63 Hamilton Place, Aberdeen (dec.)</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1927</td>
<td>Lidde, Buckham W.</td>
<td>W.S., Union Bank House, Pitlochry</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1935</td>
<td>Lidde, Laurence H.</td>
<td>Carpenham, Rostrevor, Co. Down</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1928</td>
<td>Lightsbey, Major John</td>
<td>Oatlands, Lanark</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1919</td>
<td>Lindsay, Lady Brown</td>
<td>Colstoun, Haddington</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1927</td>
<td>Lindsay, Ian Gordon</td>
<td>Major, Houston House, Uphall</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1946</td>
<td>Lindsay, Philip</td>
<td>Old Dene, Beckles, nr. Bye, Sussex</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1920</td>
<td>Livingstone, Rev. D. M.</td>
<td>M.A., The Marquess of Hopetoun House, South Queensferry</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1921</td>
<td>Linton, Andrew, B.Sc.</td>
<td>Gilmainsleuch, Selkirk</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1925</td>
<td>Little, John R.</td>
<td>5 Dalrympile Crescent, Edinburgh, 9</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1936</td>
<td>Lockhart, Mrs A. McLaren</td>
<td>J.P., Strathconon, 12 Menock Road, Glasgow, S. 4.</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1938</td>
<td>Lockie, John R.</td>
<td>St Ninians, 5 Cross Road, Meikleriggs, Paisley</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1901</td>
<td>Loney, John W. M.</td>
<td>6 Carlton Street, Edinburgh</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1942</td>
<td>Lonher, Hugh</td>
<td>The Jeannie House, Lugar Street, Cumnock</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1946</td>
<td>Lothon, Alexander J.</td>
<td>Technical Assistant, Royal Scottish Museum, Edinburgh</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1917</td>
<td>Lynn, William Henderson</td>
<td>J.P., A.M., Rowanbank, Craigendoran, Helensburgh</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1926</td>
<td>Low, Alexander M.</td>
<td>M.D., Em. Prof., Anatomy, 144 Blenheim Place, Aberdeen</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1941</td>
<td>Lowthor, A. W. G.</td>
<td>Capt., R.E., &quot;The Old Quarry,&quot; Ashstead, Surrey</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1934</td>
<td>Lumsden, James</td>
<td>130 Blenheim Place, Aberdeen</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1938</td>
<td>Lyford-Pike, John Drewett</td>
<td>M.A., 56 Kirkbrae, Liberton, Edinburgh, 9</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1936</td>
<td>Lyon, David Murray</td>
<td>M.D., Druim, Bonaly, Colinton</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1936</td>
<td>Lyon, William</td>
<td>W.S., 21 Lynedoch Place, Edinburgh (dec.)</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1944</td>
<td>Mcdonald, William L.</td>
<td>M.B., Ch.B., 1 Abbots Close, Manor Park, Aylesbury, Bucks</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1945</td>
<td>Mcclymont, Rev. J. D.</td>
<td>M.A., B.D., Manse of Old Cumnock, Cumnock, Ayrshire</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1930</td>
<td>Macdonald, Miss E.</td>
<td>Curator, 70 Old Kilbride, Ayrshire</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1938</td>
<td>Macduffee, J., F.S.I., F.F.S.</td>
<td>37 St Vincent Crescent, Glasgow, C. 3</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1947</td>
<td>Macduffee, William J.</td>
<td>D.A., 80 Pilrig Street, Edinburgh</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1929</td>
<td>Macduffee, John Drummond</td>
<td>Ellwyn, 69 Terragles Street, Dumfries</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1941</td>
<td>Maclean, John</td>
<td>Solicitor, 42 Union Street, Inverness</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1932</td>
<td>McCabbe, James Osborne</td>
<td>B.A., M.A., &quot;Fannom,&quot; Bathgate</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1946</td>
<td>McColl, Andrew Warnock</td>
<td>56 Hermiston Road, Glasgow, E. 2</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1928</td>
<td>Mcclamerty, Rev. J. D.</td>
<td>M.A., B.D., Manse of Old Cumnock, Cumnock, Ayrshire</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1930</td>
<td>MacColl, Hugh Geoffrey</td>
<td>M.A., B.Sc., Craigfannoch, Ballachulish, Argyll (dec.)</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1915</td>
<td>McCosk, Andrew</td>
<td>66 Victoria Street, Newton-Stewart</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1924</td>
<td>McCormick, John</td>
<td>380 Carnaby Road, Glasgow, E. 2 (dec.)</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1924</td>
<td>McCosk, James</td>
<td>Solicitor, Pitcon, Dalry, Ayrshire (dec.)</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1925</td>
<td>MacCowan, Rev. Roderick</td>
<td>Bras, by Portree, Isle of Skye (dec.)</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1929</td>
<td>McHale, Thomas</td>
<td>F.R.I.A.S., 6 N.E. Circus Place, Edinburgh, 3</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
</tbody>
</table>
1943. **MacCrimmon, Malcolm Roderick**, of Scotford Farm, Fort Saskatchewan, Alberta, Canada.—c/o Mr. G. C. B. Pouler, F.S.A.Scot., Collingwood Place, Camberley, Surrey.


1926. **MacDonald, Donald Somerled, W.S.**, 1 Hill Street, Edinburgh, 2.

1929. **MacDonald, Henry Lachlan**, of Dunach, Dunach, Oban, Argyll.


1945. **MacDougall, Miss Margaret Oliphant**, 6 Dalneigh Road, Inverness.

1939. **Mcdowall, J. Kevan**, Carseminnooh, 3 Airlour Road, Newlands, Glasgow, S. 3.


1926. **MacErliech, Roderick**, Factor, Ostrom House, Lochmaddy, North Uist (dec.).

1944. **MacFadyen, Rev. Archibald**, 26 Park Avenue, Portobello (dec.).

1936. **MacFabealane, D. R.**, Observatory Boys’ High School, Mowbray, Cape, South Africa.

1935. **MacFabealane, Captain John**, “Selma,” 34 Derby Street, Vaucluse, N.S.W., Australia.


1898.* **MacGlilivey of MacGlilivray, C.M., M.D., F.R.C.S.E., LL.D.**, Chattan Croft, Crail, Fife (dec.).

1942. **McGlashan, William, Ph.C., 156 Arbroath Road, Dundee.**

1901.* **MacGregor, Alasdair R., of Macgregor, Cardney, Dunkeld.**

1944. **McGregor, David D., North Tay House, Balfed Road, Dundee, Angus.**

1933. **McHardy, Ian**, Director of Education, Caithness, Randolph Place, Wick.

1938. **McInnes, Charles Thorpe** (Curator of Hist. Records), White Cottage, Old Kirk Road, Edinburgh, 12.

1944.* **McIntyre, James, F.S.A., Marycot, Clarence Gardens, Bishop Auckland, Co. Durham.**


1913. **MacIntosh, H. B., M.B.E., Redlythe, Elgin.**


1922.* **MacIntosh, Rev. E. Smith**, Hon. C.F., 38 Coupar Angus Road, Lochlee, Dundee.

1939. **McIntosh, William**, Seaforth, 34 Frederick Street, Dundee.

1946. **Mackay, The Hon. Lord, Senator of The College of Justice, 16 India Street, Edinburgh.**

1925. **Mackay, Donald, J.P., Latheronwheel House, Caithness (res.).**

1908. **Mackay, George, M.D., F.R.C.S.E., 9 Belford Avenue, Edinburgh, 3.**

1924. **Mackay, George Dods, Beach Villa, Wellington Street, Portobello.**

1946. **Mackay, John D., M.A., Central Schoolhouse, Sunday, Orkney.**

1932. **Mackay, J. B., A.R.I.S., Ministry of Works, 122 George Street, Edinburgh.**

1912. **Mackay, Norman Douglas, M.D., B.Sc., D.P.H., Dall-Avon, Aberfeldy.**

1945. **Mackay, K. R., 5 May Terrace, Giffnock.**

1939. **Mackay, Captain William, Netherwood, Inverness.**

1943. **Mackay, William J., 219 Ferry Road, Edinburgh, 6.**

1923. **Mackenzie, Robert G. S., R.B.A., 4 Watch Bell Street, Rye, Sussex.**


1912. **Mackenzie, Hector Hugh, J.P., “Ballone,” 37 Backstone Terrace, Edinburgh, 10.**

1904. **Mackenzie, William Cook, Dearghall, St. George’s Road, St Margaret’s-on-Thames.**

1944. **Mackenzie, W. M., M.A., D.Litt., H.R.S.A., 4 Barkly Street, Cromarty.**

1940. **McKerrat, Andrew, C.L.E., M.A., B.Sc., Morton, Milderder, Midlothian.**

1926. **McKerrrow, Mathew Henry, Solicitor, Dunard, Dumfries.**

1938. **Mackie, Professor J. Duncan, C.B.E., M.C., M.A., 9 The College, The University, Glasgow.**

1926. **Mackie, Robert L., M.A., B.Litt., Abercrayg, West Newport, Dundee.**

1930. **MacKillop, Rev. Allan Macdonald, E.D., B.A., B.D., “Griminish,” Sisley Street, St. Lucia, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.**

1930. **MacKinnon, Benjamin Black, J.P., 20 Hutchison Drive, Cannisburn, Bearsden, Glasgow.**

1931. **MacKinnon, Donald S., Leob, Elliot Place, Colinton Road, Edinburgh, 11.**

1945. **MacKinnon, Robert A., F.Com. M.A., Peel Hospital, Covenfords, Galashiels.**

1947. **MacKinnon, Archibald D., M.A., 34 Bailie Drive, Bearsden, Glasgow.**

1919.* **MacLagan, Douglas Philip, W.S.—Secretary, (dec.).**

1923.* **MacLagan, Miss Morag, Newhall, Penicuik, Midlothian.**

1922. **McLaren, Thomas, Redcliffe, Barnhill, Perth (dec.).**
1937. MICHIE, Miss HEILINOR T., 118 Hamilton Place, Aberdeen.


1934. MILLAR, CHARLES M. HEPBURN, 17 Osborne Terrace, Edinburgh, 12.

1937. MILLAR, CHARLES M. HEPBURN, 17 Osborne Terrace, Edinburgh, 12.

1946. MULLINS, Miss CONSTANCE M., Greenbank, Kilmacolm, Renfrewshire.

1934. MUNNOCH, JAMES, F.R.S.E., 15 Liberton Drive, Edinburgh, 9.


1933. MURRAY, CHARLES STEWART, 8 Hillview, Blackhall, Edinburgh.

1920. MURRAY, J. E., Kenwood, 97 Kirkintilloch Road, Bishopbriggs, Glasgow (res.).

1926. MURRAY, Miss LOUISE, The White House, Anstruther, Fife.

1945. MUTCH, ARCHIBALD, B.L., Lanrigg, Ronaldshay Crescent, Grangemouth.


1927. NAPIER, J. G., 13 Lynamoch Place, Edinburgh, 3 (dec.).


1925. MOWAT, JOHN, J.P., Cromwell Cottage, Kirkwall, Orkney.

1945. MOORE, Miss NORA E. E., M.A., LL.B., 7 S.E. Circus Place, Edinburgh.

1933. NAPIER, J. G., 13 Lynamoch Place, Edinburgh, 3 (dec.).


1930. NOTMAN, ROBERT CARFRAE, W.S., 15 York Place, Edinburgh, 1.


1926. OLIVER, Mrs F. S., Edgerston, near Jedburgh.

1939. PATEHSON, JAMES GRAHAM, Wellwood, Irvine, Ayrshire.

1934. PATEESON, The Very Rev. JOHN N. M., Dervaig, P.O. Rustfontein, Kokstad Dist., East Griqualand, South Africa.


1924. PATON, JAMES, 80 High Street, Lanark (dec.).

1933. PATRICK, Captain WILLIAM MACFARLANE, F.R.I.A.S., Ashton Cottage, Kirriemuir, Angus.


1947. PEEKINS, F. RUSSELL, Duntisbourne House, Cirencester, Glos.

1940. PEEIDGE, Major FEANK, S., 45 Third Avenue, Newton Park, Port Elizabeth, South Africa (dec.).


1942. PEVKELLE, Rev. FEANCIS W., Musgrove, New Road, Ferndown, Hampreston, Dorset.

1944. PEVEKELLE, Rev. FEANCIS W., Musgrove, New Road, Ferndown, Hampreston, Dorset.

1942. PHILLIPS, JAMES NICOLL, 20 American Muir Road, Dumbarton, Dunbartonshire.

1942. PUEDIE, THOMAS, Aucheneck, Killearn, Stirlingshire (dec.).

1924. PUEVES, JOHN M., M.C., 1 West Relugas Road, Edinburgh.

1928.*PETERLAND, His Grace The DUKE OF, E.G., Welbeck Abbey, Notts.


1930. PETERS, ARTHUR BOWDEN, F.R.Met.S., Librarian and Curator, Inverness Public Library.

1927. QUIG, Rev. GORDON, M.A., B.D., 238 Colinton Road, Edinburgh (dec.).

1932.*QUIG, JAMES SYMINGTON, Ravenscraig, Hamilton Drive, Falkirk.

1939.*RAI, JOHN N., S.S.C., 3a North St David Street, Edinburgh, 2.

1947. RAMSAY, Rev. DAVID, West Kirk Manse, Elderdie, Johnstone, Renfrewshire.

1922. RAMSAY, David George, M.A., E.Sc., Rector of the Academy, Skair Killibank, Kirkcudbright.

1924. RAMSAY, DOUGLAS M., J.P., Bowland, Galashiels, Selkirkshire.

1925. RANKINE, WILLIAM FRANCIS, Yew Tree Cottage, Wreclesham, Farnham, Surrey.

1927. RATCLIFFE, Joseph Riley, M.B., F.R.S.E., Glenlyn, Little Orme, Llandudno (dec.).

1943. RICHARDSON, FEANCIS, Blairforkie, Bridge of Allan.

1925. RITCHIE, Professor JAMES, M.A., D.Sc., F.R.S.E., 31 Mortonhall Road, Edinburgh, 1.


1919. RICHMOND, Professor O. L., M.A., 5 Belford Place, Edinburgh, 4.

1925. RITCHIE, Professor JAMES, M.A., D.Sc., F.R.S.E., 31 Mortonhall Road, Edinburgh, 9.

1922. RITCHIE, WILLIAM MUR, 11 Walkinshaw Street, Johnstone, Renfrewshire.
1907. Ross, James, L.L.B., L.L.D., 26 Ormidale Terrace, Edinburgh, 12.
1933. Robb, James A. T., 128 Beechwood Gardens, Hford, Essex (res.).
1933. Roberts, Fergus, Kirkden, Kirktonhill, Dumbarton.
1941. Robertson, Miss Anne S., M.A., 14 Harelaw Avenue, Muirend, Glasgow, S. 4.
1939. Robertson, George S., M.A., The Cottage, Viewfield Road, Arbroath.
1928. Robertson, Thomas Atholl, Dunvorlich, Crieff, Perthshire.
1905. Robertson, W. G. Atchison, M.D., St Margaret's, St Valerie Road, Bournemouth (dec.).
1943.*Robertson, William James, 149 Broomhill Road, Aberdeen.
1939. Robertson-Collin, Alexander, 156 Albert Road, Crosshill, Glasgow, S. 2.
1939. Roger, J. Grant, E.Sc., Museum, The University, Manchester.
1923. Rolland, Miss Helen M., 6 Murrayfield Drive, Edinburgh, 12.
1930.*Root, Mrs Frederick J., M.A., "Scotsdene," Haslemere, Surrey.
1929. Ross, James, 10 Midmar Gardens, Edinburgh, 10.
1922. Ross, Major John, Eurea, Langbank, Renfrewshire.
1943. Ross, Miss Mables, M.A., 3 Savile Place, Edinburgh, 9 (res.).
1926. Ross, Dr Winifred M., Auchendean, Dunblane Bridge, Inverness-shire.
1944. Rowan, John Wilson, Schoolhouse, Bishopston, Renfrewshire.
1945.*Russell, David F. O., M.C., Rothes, Markinch, Fife.
1943. Russell, Frank, 47 Princes Street, Monifieth, Angus.
1914. Russell, John, 4 Dudley Gardens, Edinburgh (dec.).
1925.*Salvesen, Iver R. S., Bonnington House, Kirknewton, Midlothian.
1930. Scarth, Henry W., Skail, Sandwick, Stromness, Orkney.
1910.*Schole, Major Iain H. Mackay, The Museum, Edinburgh Castle (dec.).
1940. Scott, Rev. J. E., M.A., Christ Church, Oxford.
1931.*Scott, Sir W. Lindsay, K.B.E., D.S.C., B.A., Parslows Hilltop, Princes Risborough, Bucks.

1927.* Sharp, Andrew M., 8 South Inverleith Avenue, Edinburgh, 4.

1917. Shaw, Julius A., Mus.D., c/o Barclays Bank, 46 Fountain Street, Manchester, 2 (res.).

1918. Shaw, Mackenzie S., W.S., 1 Thistle Court, Edinburgh, 2 (dec.).

1943. Shaw, Miss Mary Storrie, M.A., 5 Cartil Gardens, Fallowfield, Manchester, 14 (res.).


1940. Sim, Stewart, Architect, 57 Newington Road, Edinburgh, 9.


1909. Skinner, Robert Taylor, M.A., F.R.S.E., 35 Campbell Road, Edinburgh, 12 (dec.).


1939.* Smith, Robert B. K., M.A., 31 Mansion-house Road, Edinburgh, 9,—Keeper of the Museum.


1922. Stewart, Charles, C.A., Bracken Brauch, Downfield, Dundee (dec.).


1947. Stewart, James, 127 Fife Avenue, Salisbury, So. Rhodesia.

1944. Stewart, John, M.A., 146 Seafield Road, Aberdeen.

1917.* Stewart, John Alexander, of Inchmahome, Bonaly, Clydebank, Helensburgh.

1929. Stewart, Mrs John A., Tempar, Dupplin Terrace, Kinnoull, Perth.

1942. Souter, Charles Geddes, F.R.I.B.A., 15 South Tay Street, Dundee (res.).


1910.* Steel, Miss Marion G., Old Kippenross, Dunblane.

1939. *STUART, LORD DAVID, Woodend, Rothesay, Bute.

1939. STURROCK, EDWIN D., 15 William Street, Dundee.

1933. STURROCK, J. FERBER, St. Helens, Aberfeldy.


1946. SUTHERLAND, REV. D. GUNN, 18 Marine Place, Rothesay.

1938. SUTHERLAND, FBANCIS G., W.S., 2 Arboretum Road, Edinburgh, 4.

1937. SUTHERLAND, HAEALD HACO, Solicitor, Aikerness, Wellpark Avenue, Kilmarnock, Ayrshire.

1923. SUTTELL, ARNOLD, L.R.I.B. A., Halifax Chambers, Oxford Street, Harrogate, Yorkshire.

1946. STKES, EDWARD F., "Lindhu," Tobermory, Isle of Mull.<br>

1916. TAIT, EDWIN SEYMOUR REID, Bydin, St Olaf Street, Lerwick, Shetland.

1933. TAIT, JAMES, 870 Emerson Avenue, Detroit 15, Mich., U.S.A.

1942. TAYLOE, Rev. ALEXANDEB REID, M.A., 419 Great Western Road, Aberdeen.

1927. TAYLOE, CHAELES, 51 Kerr Street, Kirkintilloch (dec.).

1917. TAYLOE, JOHN GORDON, M.A., Advocate, 26 Heriot Row, Edinburgh, 3.

1926. TULLIS, Major JAMES KENNEDY, Baingle Brae, Tullibody, by Stirling (dec.).

1924. TULLIS, Major JAMES KENNEDY, Baingle Brae, Tullibody, by Stirling (dec.).

1932. TUENBURR, JOHN W., Ardlamont, Kames, Tighnabruaich, Argyll.

1946. TUENEE, ERIC G., M.A., Tillydrone House, Chanonry, Old Aberdeen.

1928. WALKER, ALEXANDER, 424 Great Western Road, Aberdeen.
1945. WALKER, COLIN W., M.Inst.B.E., 27 Cromwell Road, Canterbury, Kent.
1928. WALKER, REV. GEORGE A. EVERETT, Manse of Benholm, Johnshaven, Montrose.
1936. WALLACE, DAVID SWAN, W.S., 32 Ormidale Terrace, Edinburgh, 12.
1928. WALLACE, JAMES, M.A., Rector, Vale of Leven Academy, "Glenleven," Alexandria, Dumbarton.
1927.* WALLIS, W. CYBIL (Assistant Keeper, Royal Scottish Museum), 53 Spottiswoode Street, Edinburgh, 10.
1946. WANDS, JAMES K., 32 Barley Crescent, Troon, Ayrshire.
1923. WABBACK, MALCOLM, 7 Oxford Terrace, Edinburgh, 4.
1932. WASON, C. R., 1 Woodlands Terrace, Glasgow, C. 3.
1944. WATERS, DONALD, Caledonian Building, Bridge Street, Wick.
1916. WATERS, DAVID, R.E., Bridgend House, Brechin.
1924. WATERS, CHARLES, B., 25 Howard Place, Edinburgh, 4.
1907.* WATSON, CHARLES B. BOO, F.R.S.E., 24 Garscube Terrace, Edinburgh, 12 (dec.).
1944.* WATSON, GEORGE, M.A., 8 Salisbury Crescent, Oxford.
1922. WATSON, HENRY MICHAEL DENNE, C.A., 12 Henderland Road, Edinburgh, 12.
1908.* WATSON, JOHN PARKER, W.S., Greystane, Kinellan Road, Murrayfield, Edinburgh, 12.
1912. WATSON, WILLIAM J., LL.D., D.Litt.Celt., 17 Merchiston Avenue, Edinburgh (dec.).
1945.* WATSON, Capt. WILLIAM, R.M., of Ardlamont, Grangehill, Beith, Ayrshire.
1907.* WATT, JAMES, LL.D., W.S., F.F.A., 7 Blackford Road, Edinburgh, 9 (dec.).
1943. WATT, WILLIAM, C.E., 60 E. Claremont Street, Edinburgh, 7.
1923.* WATT, WILLIAM J. C., M.B., Ch.B., 71 High Street, Paisley.
1942. WAUGH, WILLIAM, Palace Knowe, Beattock, Dumfriesshire.
1946. WEBSTER, Miss JESSIE B., M.A., The Library, Queen's University, Belfast.
1927. WHEEL, WILLIAM, 18 Cathkin Road, Langside, Glasgow, S. 2.
1932. WESTON, PERCY WILLIAM, F.R.G.S., F.C.S., Villa Chappert, Tangier, Morocco (dec.).
1937. WESTWATER, ALEXANDER, Publisher, Station Road, Lochgelly, Fife.
1945. WESTWOOD, JOHN, Ivy Cottage, Torryburn, Dunfermline.
1939. WHITE, JOHN, 18A Arthur Street, Edinburgh, 6.
1945. WHITTICK, ARNOLD, 59 Ernest Grove, Beckenham, Kent.
1897. WILLIAMS, H. MALLAM, J.P., 34 Southern Road, West Southbourne, Bournemouth (dec.).
1935. WILSON, ARTHUR W., "Rannerdale," Venture-fair Avenue, Dunfermline.
1933. WILSON, JAMES, 60 E. Claremont Street, Edinburgh, 7.
1934. *Wishart, Frederick, 632 King Street, Aberdeen (dec.).
1938. Young, Miss Agnes Aitken, B.Sc., Greenyale, Ardbeg Road, Rothesay.
1939. Young, Mrs J. P., Arnsbrae, Cambus, Clackmannanshire.
1929. Younger, Mrs J. P., Arnsbrae, Cambus, Clackmannanshire.

Additional Fellows for Session 1947–48

1948. Baldwin, Albert Henry F., 87 Queens Road, Richmond, Surrey.
1948. Carter, Charles, M.Sc., 100 Cornhill Road, Aberdeen.
1947. Clarke, John, M.A., Kilmeny, Mansionhouse Road, Paisley.
1947. Durand, Miss Catherine, 88 Holmea Road, Cathcart, Glasgow, S. 4.
1948. Kellor, James, 172 Hawkhill, Dundee.
1948. Lam, Alexander, St Mary's College, St Andrews.
1948. Lengton, Thomas Strachan, 16 Marchmont Road, Edinburgh.
1948. Mackintosh of Mackintosh, Miss Margaret, Moy Hall, Inverness-shire.
CORRESPONDING MEMBERS

1923. Black, George F., Ph.D., 325 Watson Avenue, Lyndhurst, New Jersey, U.S.A.
1927. Brenner, Simon, Mid Town, Freswick, Caithness.
1926. Fortune, John Robert, 9 Murray Place, Peebles.
1936. Moir, Peter, 4 Thorfinn Street, Lerwick, Shetland.
1915. Morrison, Murdo, Lakefield, Bragar, Lewis.
1931. Smith, Samuel, Murrills, Laurieston, near Falkirk.
1933. Torston, James, Yorville, Rousay, Orkney.

HONORARY FELLOWS

  Professor Franz Cumont, 19 Corso d'Italia, Rome.
  Frank Gerald Simpson, M.A., 4 Sydenham Terrace, Newcastle.
1926. Professor Dr philos. A. W. Brogger, Bestyrer av Universitets Oldsaksamling, Tullinløkken, Oslo, Norway.
  Sir Arthur Keith, LL.D., M.D., D.Sc., F.R.C.S., F.R.S., Master of the Buckston Browne Farm, Downe, Farnborough, Kent.
  Dr R. Paribeni, Director of the Institute of Archaeology of Rome, Museo Nazionale Romano Rome.
1927. Don Hermilio Alcalde del Rio, Torrelavega, Santander, Spain (dec.).
1931. Mrs M. E. Cunnington, 33 Long Street, Devizes, Wiltshire.
   Professor Dr Robert Zahn, Director bei den Staatlichen Museen, Honorar-professor an der Universität, Am Lustgarten, Berlin, C.2 (dec.).
1933. Professor Dr philos. Haakon Shetelig, Bergens Museums Oldsaksamling, Bergen, Norway.
1935. Professor Gerhard Bersu, F.S.A., Royal Irish Academy, Dublin.
1939. Professor Dr Andreas Alpöldi, Pázmány-Universität, Múzeum-Korut 6-8, Budapest, VIII.
   O. G. S. Crawford, Nursling, Southampton.
1942. Dr M. I. Artamonov, Director of the Institute of Material Culture in the Academy of Sciences, Leningrad.
   Professor A. E. Van Giffen, Biologisch Archäologisch Instituut, Rijks Universiteit, Portstr. 6, Groningen, Holland.

LADY ASSOCIATE

SOCIETIES, INSTITUTIONS, &c., EXCHANGING PUBLICATIONS.

(s) = Subscribers.

**British Isles.**

Scotland—
The Abbey, Fort Augustus (s).
Aberdeen Public Library (s).
Aberdeen University Library.
Baillie's Institution, Glasgow.
Berwickshire Naturalists' Club.
Buchan Club.
Buteshire Natural History Society.
Dumfriesshire and Galloway Natural History and Antiquarian Society.
Dundee Public Library (s).
Edinburgh Architectural Association.
Edinburgh Geological Society.
Edinburgh Public Library.
Edinburgh University Library.
Elgin Literary and Scientific Society.
*Faculty of Procurators' Library, Glasgow (s).*
Falkirk Archeological and Natural History Society (s).
Falkirk Public Library (s).
Gaelic Society of Inverness.
Glasgow Archeological Society.
Glasgow University Library.
Hawick Archeological Society.
Hay Fleming Library, Kinburn House, St Andrews (s).
Institute of Accountants and Actuaries in Glasgow (s).
Mitchell Library, Glasgow.
New College Library, Edinburgh.
Orkney Antiquarian Society, Kirkwall.
Perthshire Society of Natural Science.
Register House, H.M., Edinburgh (Historical Department).
Royal Commission on Ancient and Historical Monuments of Scotland.
Royal Scottish Museum, Edinburgh.
St Andrews University Library.
Scottish Central Library for Students, Dunfermline (Carnegie Trust) (s).
Scottish Ecclesiastical Society.
Scottish National Portrait Gallery, Edinburgh.
Signet Library, Edinburgh.

Stirling Natural History and Archeological Society.
*Stornoway Public Library (s).*
Third Spalding Club.

England—
Ashmolean Museum, Oxford (s).
Athenaeum Club, London.
Birmingham Public Libraries (Reference Dept.) (s).
Birmingham University Library (s).
Bodleian Library, Oxford.
Bristol and Gloucestershire Archeological Society.
British Museum Library.
Cambridge Antiquarian Society.
Cambridge University Library.
Chetham's Library, Manchester.
Courtauld Institute of Art, University of London.
Cumberland and Westmorland Antiquarian and Archeological Society.
Department of British and Medieval Antiquities, British Museum (s).
Derbyshire Archeological Society.
Durham University Library (s).
Essex Archeological Society.
Guildhall Library, London (s).
Hampshire Field Club and Archeological Society.
Historic Society of Lancaster and Cheshire.
Institute of Archeology, Liverpool.
Jesus College, Oxford (s).
John Rylands Library, Manchester (s).
Kent Archeological Society.
Leeds University Library (s).
Liverpool Public Libraries (Reference Dept.), London Library (s).
London, University of (Goldsmiths' Library) (s).
Manchester, University of (s).
Ordnance Survey Library, Southampton.
Public Record Office, London.
Royal Anthropological Institute, London.
Royal Archeological Institute of Great Britain and Ireland.
Royal Historical Society, London.
Royal Institute of British Architects, London.
Royal Library, Windsor.
Royal Numismatic Society, London.
Sheffield University Library (s).
Shropshire Archaeological Society.
Society for the Promotion of Roman Studies, London.
Society of Antiquaries of London.
Society of Antiquaries of Newcastle-on-Tyne.
Somerset Archaeological and Natural History Society.
Surrey Archaeological Society.
Sussex Archaeological Society.
Victoria and Albert Museum, London.
Viking Society for Northern Research.
Wiltshire Archaeological Society.
Yorkshire Archaeological Society.

Wales—
Architectural, Archaeological and Historic Society of Chester and North Wales.
Cambrian Archæological Association.
Carmarthenshire Antiquarian Society.
National Library of Wales, Aberystwyth.
National Museum of Wales, Cardiff (s).
Powys-land Club, Welshpool, Mon.
Royal Commission on Ancient and Historical Monuments in Wales and Monmouthshire.

Ireland—
Belfast Natural History and Philosophical Society.
Royal Irish Academy, Dublin.
Royal Society of Antiquaries of Ireland.
Trinity College Library, Dublin.
University College, Dublin (s).

Other Countries.

Australia—
Public Library of Victoria, Melbourne (s).

Austria—
Akademie der Wissenschaften, Vienna.
National Library, Vienna.
Österreichische Gesellschaft für Anthropologie, Ethnologie und Prähistoric, Vienna.

Belgium—
L’Institut Archéologique Liégeois, Liège.
Société Archéologique de Namur.
Société des Bollandistes, Brussels.
Société d’Histoire et d’Archéologie de Gand.
Société Royale d’Archéologie, Brussels.

Bulgaria—
L’Institut Archéologique Bulgare, Sofia.

Canada—
Royal Canadian Institute, Toronto.
Royal Ontario Museum of Archaeology, Toronto.

Czecho-Slovakia—
Institut Archéologique de l’Etat tchécoslovaque, Prague.
National Bohemian Museum, Prague.
Société Archéologique de Moravie, Brno.

Denmark—
Royal Library, Copenhagen.
Royal Society of Northern Antiquaries, Copenhagen.

Estonia—
University Library, Tartu.

Finland—
Société Finlandaise d’Archéologie, Helsinki.

France—
Académie des Inscriptons et Belles Lettres, Paris.
Bibliothèque d’Art et d’Archéologie, Université de Paris.
Bibliothèque de l’Université, Sorbonne, Paris (s).
L’Institut de Paléontologie Humaine, Paris.
Société des Antiquaires de l’Ouest, Poitiers.
Société Archéologique de Montpellier.
Société Préhistorique Française, Paris.

Germany—
Archäologisches Institut des Deutschen Reiches Römisch-Germanische Kommission, Frankfurt a/M.
Archiv für Kultur-geschichte, Weimar.
Bayrische Staats-bibliothek, Munich.
Historischer Verein für Niedersachsen.
Kiel University.
Landesanstalt für Volkskunde, Hallé à Saale, Saxony.
Landesmuseum, Hannover.
Preussische Staats-bibliothek, Berlin.
Public Library, Hamburg.
Rhein-landesmuseum, Trier.
Rheinisches Landesmuseum, Bonn.
Römisch-Germanisches Zentral Museum, Mainz.
Sächsische Landes-bibliothek, Dresden.
Sächsischer Alterthumsverein, Breslau.
Städtisches Museum für Volkerkunde, Leipzig.
Verein für Nassauische Alterthumskunde, Wiesbaden.

Holland—
Rijks-Museum van Oudheden, Leyden.
Hungary—
Aquinummi Muzeum, Budapest.
Archaeologisches Institut D. Kon. Ung. Franz Joseph-Universität, Szeged.
Archaeologisches Institut der Pázmány Universität, Budapest.

India—
Archaeological Survey of India.
Colombo Museum, Colombo, Ceylon.

Italy—
British School at Rome.
Commissione Archeologica Communale di Roma.
Istituto d'Archeologia, Rome.
Istituto Italiano di Antropologia, Rome.
Reale Accademia Nazionale dei Lincei, Rome.

New Zealand—
Otago University Library, Dunedin.

Norway—
Bergen Museum, Bergen.
Föreningen til Norske Fortidsminnesmerkers Bevaring, Oslo.
Kongelige Norske Videnskabers Selskap, Trondheim.
Norsk Arkeologisk Selskap, Oslo.
Stavanger Museum, Stavanger.
University of Oslo.
Universitetets Oldsaksamling, Oslo.

Palestine—
Department of Antiquities in Palestine, Jerusalem.

Poland—
Musée Archéologique Erasie Majewski de la Société des Sciences de Varsovie.
Société Préhistorique Polonaise, Poznan.

Russia—
Académie des Sciences, Leningrad.
Académie des Sciences d’Ukraine, Kiev.
State Historical Museum, Moscow.

Spain—
Servicio de Investigacion Prehistorica, Valencia.
Sociedad Española de Antropología, Etnología y Prehistoria, Madrid.
Sociedad General Española de Librería, Madrid (s).

Sweden—
Göteborg och Bohuslåns Forminnesföreningen, Gothenburg.
Lund University Library.
Nordiska Museet, Stockholm.
Royal Academy of History and Antiquities, Stockholm.
Royal Library, Stockholm.
Royal University Library, Upsala.

Switzerland—
Historische und Antiquarische Gesellschaft, Basle.
Musée d’Art et d'Histoire, Geneva.
Musée National Suisse, Zürich.
Société Suisse de Préhistoire, Frauenfeld.
Tauschstelle der Antiquarischen Gesellschaft, Zürich.

Turkey—
Türk Tarih Kurumu, Ankara.

United States of America—
American Philosophical Society, Philadelphia (s).
California University, Berkeley.
Chicago Natural History Museum.
Chicago University Library (s).
Cleveland Public Library, Ohio (s).
*Columbia University, New York (s).
Cornell University Library, Ithaca, New York.
Detroit Public Library (s).
Free Public Library, Boston, Mass. (s).
Harvard College (s).
Henry E. Huntington Library, San Marino, Cal. (s).
Metropolitan Museum of Art, New York (s).
Newberry Library, Chicago.
New York Public Library (s).
Pennsylvania Historical Society, Philadelphia (s).
Princeton Theological Seminary, New Jersey (s).
Public Library, Civic Center, San Francisco (s).
Smithsonian Institution, Washington.
University of Michigan, Ann Arbor, Mich. (s).
University of Minnesota, Minneapolis (s).
University of Pennsylvania, Philadelphia (s).
University of Wisconsin, Madison, Wisconsin (s).
Yale University Library, New Haven, Conn. (s).

Yugo-Slavia—
Académie Royale Serbe, Belgrade.
National Museum, Zagreb.

Periodicals.
Boletín Arqueológico del Sudeste Español, Cartagena, Spain.
Bulletin Archéologique polonais, Warsaw, Poland.
PROCEEDINGS
OF THE
SOCIETY OF ANTIQUARIES OF SCOTLAND

ONE HUNDRED AND SIXTY-SIXTH SESSION, 1945-1946

ANNIVERSARY MEETING, 30th November 1945.*

SIR FRANCIS J. GRANT, K.C.V.O., LL.D.,
Vice-President, in the Chair.

The Rev. Archibald E. Robertson and Mr J. S. Richardson were appointed
Scrutineers of the Ballot for Office-Bearers.

The Ballot having been concluded, the Scrutineers found and declared
the List of the Council for the ensuing year to be as follows:—

President.
The Right Hon. THE EARL OF HADDINGTON, M.C., T.D.

Vice-Presidents.
WILLIAM ANGUS, LL.D.
J. M. DAVIDSON, O.B.E., F.C.I.S.
Professor J. DUNCAN MACKIE, C.B.E., M.C., M.A.

Councillors.
Sir JOHN STIRLING MAXWELL, Bart.,
K.T., D.L., Representing the Board of
Trustees.
DAVID ROBERTSON, M.A., LL.B., S.S.C.,
J.P.
W. MACKAY MACKENZIE, M.A., D.Litt.,
H.R.S.A.
F. A. FERGUSON.
DAVID RUSSELL, LL.D.

E. W. M. BALFOUR-MELVILLE, M.A.,
D.Litt.
Brigadier-General E. CRAIG BROWN,
D.S.O.
ALEXANDER O. CURLE, C.V.O., LL.D.,
F.S.A.
WILLIAM HENDERSON, M.A.
Miss ANNE S. ROBERTSON, M.A.

* Note.—In this volume the Minutes of the Anniversary Meeting for 1945 and Annual Report for
1944-45 are printed at the beginning; and those for 1946 at the end, so as to co-ordinate the Report with
the List of Donations and Purchases.

With the same object in view, the Annual Report and Minutes of Anniversary Meeting will in
subsequent volumes be printed at the end.
A Ballot having been taken, the following were elected Fellows: James Francis Gordon Baynham; William A. Cocks; Godfrey William Iredell, S.S.C.; Mrs Anne Grant Kilgour; Robert Alexander McKinnon, F.Comm.A.; Captain Wm. R. M. Watson of Ardlamont; Lieut.-Colonel J. G. O. Whitehead, R.E.; Arnold Whittick.

The Secretary read the following List of Members deceased since the last Anniversary Meeting:


The Secretary read the following Report by the Council on the affairs of the Society:

**ANNUAL REPORT.**

The Council herewith submits to the Fellows of the Society its Report for the year ending 30th November 1945.
ANNUAL REPORT.

Fellowship.—The total number of Fellows on the Roll at
30th November 1944 was 812
At 30th November 1945 the number was 832
being an increase of 20

The number of new Fellows added to the roll during the year was 61, while 27 died, 7 resigned, and 7 allowed their membership to lapse.

Proceedings.—Volume LXXIX is still in the press, but it will contain eight papers (including Lord Normand’s Address at the reopening of the Museum), together with several Notes. Of the papers, one deals with a prehistoric subject, the remaining six with subjects of later periods. Professor Childe, who has been acting as honorary Editor, has been regretfully compelled to divest himself of this responsibility after the completion of this volume.

Directorship.—During the year Professor V. Gordon Childe continued to act as Director without salary. The Council takes this opportunity of expressing its most cordial thanks to him for his untiring and public-spirited efforts, and more particularly for the splendidly successful exhibition that he organised in the Museum, as will be described in detail shortly.

Steps towards Re-opening the Museum.—The Society’s Council and the Director feeling that, in view of the City’s immunity from enemy attack and the large number of Dominions and American service-men visiting it on leave, some effort should be made to give such visitors and the public generally an opportunity to see specimens of Scotland’s national antiquities, decided to recommend the opening of a token exhibition on the ground floor to display only objects already in the galleries and such duplicates as might be placed there without risk of significant loss to the National Collection through enemy action. Accordingly the Director and Mr J. S. Richardson, one of the Curators appointed by the Society, planned an exhibition on the ground floor that, within the limits imposed by security considerations, should give a picture of the development of culture in Scotland and also, in view of the bicentenary, commemorate the Jacobite rising of 1745. Thanks to the cordial co-operation of the Ministry of Works the ground floor was rearranged. Cases were set back to back so as to allow space for viewing the contents; the choicest sculptured stones were made visible for the first time by consigning the remainder to the stairs or cellars; inferior articles were removed from the annex to give space for movement, and the Maiden was set up on a scaffold where it could be seen. The subsequent arrangement of exhibits in the south aisle (devoted to prehistoric and Roman and Viking relics) was undertaken by the Director, in the north aisle (containing
Early Christian, mediæval and Jacobite relics) by the Curator, to whom the Society and the Nation are deeply indebted for his voluntary and eminently successful labours. The restricted number of exhibits were set out so as to tell a story and supplemented by distribution maps, photographs, plans and explanatory labels, so as to be intelligible and attractive to the general public. A number of institutions and individuals generously loaned for the occasion articles relevant to the '45 or to replace specimens in the National Collection that the Security Regulations forbade us to remove from the safety of the cellars. A six-page guide to the exhibition was prepared by Professor Childe and Mr Richardson, 500 copies being at first printed for sale at 3d.

The exhibition, under the title “From the Stone Age to the '45,” was formally opened on 21st March by The Right Hon. Lord Normand, P.C., K.C.; the Lord Provost of Edinburgh being in the chair. (Lord Normand’s address is printed in extenso in Volume LXXIX of the Society’s Proceedings.)

On 11th April the Council of the Society decided, in view of the large number of service-men stationed in the vicinity whose only opportunity of viewing the exhibition was on Sunday, to recommend the opening of the Museum on Sunday afternoons for the present. Effect has been given to this recommendation as from Sunday, 20th May.

Since the end of hostilities in Europe, steps have been taken to give effect to the recommendation of the Standing Commission on Museums and Galleries by withdrawing from the cellars and placing on exhibition the finest pieces in the National Collection, such as the Torrs Chamfrain, the Monymusk Reliquary, St Fillan’s Crozier, the Guthrie Bell, the Clanranald Collection. On the recommendation of the Council, some of these have been withdrawn from exhibition since Professor Childe gave up responsibility for the collections. At the same time, as far as the depleted staff would allow, casts and inferior duplicates in the exhibition were replaced by the choicest original specimens, and the Guide was adjusted to include these alterations before the second re-printing.

During September, with the return of attendants from service, a start has been made reinstating in their old positions in the 1st-floor gallery and the annexed safe those prehistoric objects removed for security to cellars six years previously. The Beakers, Food-Vessels, Bronze Age hoards, Cauldrons and contents, Broch relics, Azilian finds and gold ornaments have thus been restored to their appropriate places and checked against the catalogue cards. It is gratifying to report that nothing of importance has been lost or damaged in the hasty evacuation.

Attendances.—Since the exhibition was opened to the public on 21st March to 12th October, it was visited by 32,043 persons. Since this is the first record of visitors to the Museum of Antiquities alone (as distinct from
ANNUAL REPORT.

those entering the building to visit the Museum or the Portrait Gallery, or both), the monthly attendances are here tabulated:

<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>Month</th>
<th>March</th>
<th>April</th>
<th>May</th>
<th>June</th>
</tr>
</thead>
<tbody>
<tr>
<td></td>
<td>1582</td>
<td>3020</td>
<td>4111</td>
<td>4397</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td></td>
<td></td>
<td>5308</td>
<td>5956</td>
<td>5695</td>
</tr>
</tbody>
</table>

The success of Sunday openings is strikingly demonstrated by the following table:

<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>Date</th>
<th>Attendance</th>
</tr>
</thead>
<tbody>
<tr>
<td>20/5/45</td>
<td>453</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>27/5/45</td>
<td>249</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>3/6/45</td>
<td>291</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>10/6/45</td>
<td>195</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>17/6/45</td>
<td>361</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>24/6/45</td>
<td>186</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1/7/45</td>
<td>221</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>8/7/45</td>
<td>193</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>15/7/45</td>
<td>153</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>22/7/45</td>
<td>225</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>29/7/45</td>
<td>210</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>5/8/45</td>
<td>197</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>12/8/45</td>
<td>205</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>19/8/45</td>
<td>213</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>26/8/45</td>
<td>218</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>2/9/45</td>
<td>201</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>9/9/45</td>
<td>212</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>16/9/45</td>
<td>255</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>23/9/45</td>
<td>257</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>30/9/45</td>
<td>322</td>
</tr>
</tbody>
</table>

The first 500 copies of the Guide sold out in a month and a 1000 extra copies were printed. In three months these were exhausted and a revised edition of 1000 was ordered. In all, 1952 copies have been sold. These figures prove that the relics of Antiquity that the Society has done so much to amass have a wide appeal to the general public if suitably displayed, and justify the Museum’s existence not only as a laboratory for historical and archeological research, but also as an educational institution. The large attendances during the brief Sunday openings show that these meet a real demand, and provide perhaps the best opportunity for reaching those wide...
masses on whose active co-operation the augmentation of the collections and the increase of archaeological knowledge so often depend.

Since Professor Childe was no longer prepared to take responsibility for the safe custody of the collections after 12th October, the Council felt all articles of bullion value and unique national treasures should be removed from the glass cases in the public galleries and placed in the appropriate strong-rooms pending the release of the Keeper from the Forces, or the appointment of a salaried Director to take responsibility for such objects on behalf of the Nation, and this would have involved the depletion of the exhibition to such an extent and to the danger of breaking the terms on which relics had been accepted as to involve closing the Museum. At the last minute, however, the Scottish Home Department were able to arrange with the Scottish Education Department and the Director of the Royal Scottish Museum that Mr Finlay, of that Museum, should be seconded for half-time duty in the National Museum of Antiquities till the end of the year. The Council have gratefully accepted this offer and agreed to the continued opening of the exhibition.

Accessions.—During the year 746 objects have been added to the Collection as donations and bequests. This gratifying figure is largely due to the generosity of testators and donors who have enriched the Museum with collections that are not only large but also extremely valuable. Outstanding among these is the Clanranald Collection of Family and Jacobite relics that became the property of the Nation under the will of Angus Roderick Macdonald, 23rd Chief and Captain of Clanranald, who died on 17th March 1944. It comprises 72 specimens, including a backsword with elaborately chased silver basket hilt, said to have been presented to Prince Charles Edward by the Western Jacobites and captured with his baggage at Culloden; a single-edged sword, with iron basket hilt inlaid with silver and Andrea Ferrara blade; a smooth bore fowling-piece of the same age and style; a silver spoon belonging to the Prince and a quaich belonging to Flora Macdonald; articles of dress illustrative of the costume of the Highland nobility last century; and a number of personal relics acquired by members of this distinguished Scottish family. Colonel George Ian Malcolm of Poltalloch has generously donated the collection of 469 articles previously deposited in the Museum on loan by the late Sir Ian Malcolm, the donor’s father. It includes the famous and beautiful Food Vessels dug up by Canon Greenwell last century, and the relics from Dunadd obtained by the excavation directed by our late Honorary Secretary, J. Hewat Craw. Mr E. H. M. Cox presented 60 Communion Tokens. Forty-four objects come as a gift from Dr Aitchison Robertson; they comprise a phosphorus bottle, a barber’s bleeding-dish of brass, two horn books, a fine “Glasgow Apprentice Lantern,” and an hourglass from the Old Church of Muthill in Perthshire.
Of unique interest and exceptional value is the dress targe popularly known as "The Prince Charlie Targe," but actually bearing the Arms of the Duke of Perth, that was presented to the Nation by Mr John G. Murray of Clava. This celebrated relic is described elsewhere in the volume.

The Hon. J. Wayland Leslie of Kininvie has donated a lay figure wearing the costume of the 9th Earl of Rothes, including his Thistle Star—a very attractive as well as very valuable example of a noble's dress in the early eighteenth century—and an exquisite evening robe of a countess of the latter half of the same century, together with a glass case to contain them.

Food-Vessel Urns from Kirkbuddo and Luffness have been presented by the late Mr George Erskine Jackson and Mrs Hope of Luffness; Beaker Urns from Kirkbuddo by the late Mr George Erskine Jackson; and Cinerary Urns from Ardachy, Connel, by Mrs Lees-Milne, and from Dunragit by the Department of Agriculture for Scotland.

The Library.—The Library has been open throughout the year. The privilege of borrowing books was restored to Fellows by a resolution of the Council on 10th October 1944. It has acquired 49 volumes by donation and 6 by purchase. The end of the war and incipient return towards normal now permit the resumption of valued exchanges interrupted by hostilities. Missing publications have already been received from France, Norway, Sweden. Communication is, however, still impeded by a network of restrictions imposing the completion of innumerable forms and the waste of paper that might more profitably be used for printing the Proceedings.

Rhind Lectureship.—The Rhind Lectures for 1945 were given by Dr W. Mackay Mackenzie, his subject being "The Scottish Burghs." The lectures for 1946 are to be given in the spring by Professor Haakon Shetelig and in October of that year by Mr Bryan H. St John O'Neil.

The Gunning Fellowship.—No award was made for 1945.

The Chalmers-Jervise Prize.—This prize was not advertised in 1945.

WILLIAM ANGUS,
Vice-President.

Dr W. Mackay Mackenzie moved the adoption of the Report and the motion was seconded by Dr Balfour-Melville.

The Accounts of the Society for the year 1943–44, which had been circulated amongst the Fellows, were unanimously approved.

Mr F. J. Robertson moved the adoption of the Accounts and Mr J. Kevan McDowall seconded the motion. A hearty vote of thanks was accorded to the Treasurer.